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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Avon Solutions and Logistics Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

()

(i)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on a daily basis as explained in note 46 to the financial
statements;

(c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as stated
in the note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement,

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date
of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Aravind K

Partner

Membership Number: 221268
UDIN: 23221268BGXPPD4435

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 21, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(iif) () During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:

Particulars Loans (in
INR millions)

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year:
- Others 40.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases:
- Others 40.00

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to Limited liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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(b) The Company has granted to loans to one company covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company has granted loans during the year to a Company where the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. However, there have been no repayments
which have fallen due in the current year.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which had fallen due during the year.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, emplovees’
state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues | Amount Period to | Due date | Date  of
in INR | which the payment
millions amount relates

Labour welfare fund | Dues relating to | 9.60 FY 2012-13 to | Various | Not paid

Act, 1965 salary and bonus FY 2019-20 dates

payable to

employees unpaid
greater than 3 years
to be transferred to
Labour welfare
fund
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The Employees’ | Provident fund 2.83 FY 2007-08 to | Various | Not paid
Provident Funds and FY 2011-12 dates
Miscellaneous

Provisions Act, 1952 *

* excludes interest

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees® state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor / secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar
as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xix) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
29A to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 29A to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

o ialilEs
.-_"—‘—

per Aravind K

Partner

Membership Number: 221268
UDIN: 23221268BGXPPD4435
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 21, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AVON SOLUTIONS AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Avon Solutions
and Logistics Private (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

b0
per Aravind K
Partner
Membership Number: 221268
UDIN: 23221268BGXPPD4435
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 21, 2023




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023
M anenanes are i willions of Dndian Rupees wrless otheivise srored)

Particulars Notes o e
March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a} Property. plant and equipment 3 67 34
(b Intangible assets 3A 0.78 0.88
() Right-ol-use assets 4 545 0.29
{d) Financial assets
(i) Loans § 40,00 =
{ii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 33.00 .00
(iii) Other Mnancial assets & 8.52 234
() Other non-current assets 8 . 0.36
() Delerred tax asset (Net) 10 27.81 2376
{2} Income tax asset (Net) 11 3386 13.08
173.09 49.85
Current assets
ta) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 117.84 231.88
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 13 330 1.23
(iif) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 161,42 169.92
(iv} Other financial assets 7 7.59 5.96
(b} Other current assets 9 ivsd 4.55
300,14 413.54
Total Assets 473.23 463.39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 14 248 248
th) Other equity 15 30159 374.42
Total Equity 304.07 276.90
Non-current linbilitics
() Financial liabilitics
(1) Lease liabilities 4 X85 -
(b} Provisions 16 17.70 16.86
21,55 16.86
Current Liabilities
ta) Financial liabilities
(i)} Borrowings 18 - 10.88
(i) Lease liabilities 4 1.62 0.41
(i) Trade payables 19
Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises 0.29 0.26
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium 18.73 3411
enterprises
(iv) Other current financial liabilities 20 81.94 7259
tb} Provisions 17 2245 21 66
{c) Other current liabilities 2] 22.58 15.88
(d) Liabilities for current tax {net) 2 - 13.84
147.61 169.63
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABLITIES 473.23 463.39
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements RNGEY

As perour report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

b nd e
-— =
per Aravind K
Partner

Membership No. 221268

Place: Chennai
Date ; June 21, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
von Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

i
P D Rajan

Managing Dircctor
DIN : 01919643

Place: Chennai
Date : June 21, 2023

L B Jayaram
Director
DIN 01603927




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limired
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
t Al amounts are tn millions of Indian Rupees unless othervise sued)

it Notes Year ended Year ended
’ o i March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 2 604,53 77544
Other ncome 24 . 0.48
Finance income 25 11.68 443
Total Income 616.21 780.35
Expenses
Emplovee benefits expense 26 268.77 234,50
Finance costs 27 042 0.40
Depreciation and amortization expense 3% 214 329
Other expenses 29 244.71 135.00
Total Expense 516.04 573.25
Profit before tax 100.17 207.10
Tax Expenses:
Current tax 30 29.64 55.79
Tax related o earlier years 30 8.19 2.29
Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax (Net} 30 (419 2:54)
Income tax expense 33.64 55.54
Profit for the year 66.53 151.56
Other Comprehensive Income:

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) 30 0.52 (0.07)
Income tax effect " (0.13) 0.02

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the yvear, net of tax .39 (0.05)
Total comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 66.92 151,51

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share {Amount in 3} 3l 2.677.84 546836

Diluted eamings per equity share {Amount in 3} il 2,677.84 5,468,306
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
AN cmarones are in nillions of dicen Rupees mless otherwise stared)

(2) Equity share capital

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Balanee as on March 31, 2021 18,845 188
Add: Shares issued durmg the period - -
Less: Buvback ol equity shares 14.000) (0400
Balance as on March 31, 2022 24,845 248
Add: Shares issued during the period - -
Balance as on March 31, 2023 24,845 248
(b) Other equity

Particulars Retained Earnings| General reserve Additioant paid i Heeugtics Capttal Total

captial Premium redemption reseryel

As at March 31,2021 140.63 26.60 - 9.61 - 176.84
Profit for the vear 151,50 - - - - 151.56
Other Comprehensive Income {0.035) - - - - {0.05)]
Buyback of equity shares (refer note 14) (34.33) - (9610 040 (43.74)
lucome tax on buyback of equity shares {refer note 14) (10,19} - - - - (10.19)

As at March 31, 2022 24742 26.60 - - 0.40 27442
Profit for the year 0653 - - - - 66.53
Other Comprehiensive Income 0.39 - - S 0.39
Dividend Paid (39,75) - - " (39.75)
Emplovee stock options provided (Refer Note 38) - 0.87 = - 0.87
Employee stock options costs pavable to holding Company i i (08T ) } (087
{refer note 38)

Balance as on March 31, 2023 274.59 26,60 - - 040 159

Summary of sivnificant accounting policies 2
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Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31,2023
(M amounts are in milfions of Indian Rupees wnless odherwise scaed)

s il Year ended Year ended

. g March 31. 2023 March 312022
Profit before 1ax 100,17 207.10
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation amortization 214 329
Interest expenses 0.42 0.40
Interest income {11.68) 443
Emplayee stock option expenses 0.87 =
Provision (reversal) for expected credit loss of trade receivables (4.16) 1.98
Provision for doubtful advances 0.26 -
Bad debts written off 0.835 -
Loss on sule ol'assel 0.01 0.01
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 88.88 108.35
Meovements i working capiral :
(Increase)-decrease in trade receivables 117.35 335
{Tncrease) decrease in other assets (7.92) (1.97)
Inerease{decrease) in trade payables (15.30) 7.53
Increaser {decrense) in current liabilities and provisions 17.33 18.90 :
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 200,34 236.16
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (72:45) (69.21)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities A 127.89 166.95
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (2.18) (2.9%)
Interest income 8.65 2.64
Loan given to related party (40.00) -
Investments in bank deposits {net) (38.50) (125.73)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities B (72.03) (126.08)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from ' Repayment of short-term borrowings {Net) (10.88) 10.88
Interest paid {0.37) 10.28)
Dividends paid 139.75) -
Buy-back of equity shares - (44.14)
Tax on buy-back of equity shares - (10.19)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 10.54) (1.96}
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilitics 10.03) {0.12)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in fimancing activities C (51.59) (45.81)
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 427 (4.94)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (see below) 1.23 6.17
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the vear {see below) 5.50 .23
Components of Cash and cash equivalent:
Balances with banks:
- On ¢urrent accounts 5.50 1.22
Cash in hand 0.00 0.01

5.50 1.23

Non ¢ash investing and financing activities
Actuisition of right-of-use agsets 5.60 .
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes fonm an integral part of the Financial Statements. Jwd?
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Avon Solutions & Lagisties Private Limited
Naotes to the finaneinl statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
LA amenes ave e miliions of Indian Rupees wiless otherwize siaed)

I Corporate Information
Avon Solutions & Logisties Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on December 2. 2002, The Company is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered l'I"ILL‘ of the company is located at Balammal Building. No, 33, 1st Floor,
Burkit Road. T.Nagar. Chiennai - 600017, The Company is prumarily into rendering integrated mailroom solutions across diverse industries such as banking,
insurance. consultaney. technology and manufactur The Company 15 engaged in three tvpes of services - Mailroom operations. mail logistics and pickup & delivery
s, Lhe Company 15 a subsidiary of Updater Serviees Limited,

[

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements comprising the Balince Shect as of March 31, 2023, statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2023, cash flow
statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the statement of changes in equity for the vear ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards . as prescribed wnder section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013,
Companies Undian A ing Standards) A d Rules, 2016 as amended.

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an acerual basis except for certain financial i
at the end of each reporting period. as explained in the accounting policies below. The financial siatemems are presented
Company’s functional curreney and all values are rounded 1o the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when otherwise stated.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the {ollowi
al Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies: and
b Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value.

struments that are measured at fair values
Infian Rupees {INR) which is also the

Historical cost is generally based on the fir value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and servives.

23§ y of Signifi Accounting Policies
. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or conswned in normal operating cyele

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting periad

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

= It is expected to be seftfed i nonnal operating cyvele

= 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

1t is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The eperating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realisaton in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified vwelve
menths as its operating cycle.

b. Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost
of bringing the asset 1o its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

For depreciation purposes, the Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from
that of the life of the prncipal asset and depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised m the carrying amount of the plant and equi as a repl il the recognition eriteria are satisfied and the same is depreciated based on their specific
useful lives. All ather expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the statement of profit

and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any sivnificant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic bmef‘ts are exp(.cu.d

from ils use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference | the net d p
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized i the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
\ N\
. ———""




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(AT amons ave in millions of Indian Rupees wless otherwive stared)

Depreciation
The Company depreciates items of property. plant and equipy ated wseful lives as preseribed in Schedule 11 1o the Companies Act. 2013, The management
believes that these estimated uselul lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely w0 be used.

The Company has used the followi

vears to provide depreciation on its property. plant and equipment.

urs)

Category of assets [Useful life (in v
|Computer 3

Furniture and fixtures
Office cquipments
Vehicles

(=]

= | |— |-

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and cquipment are reviewed at each fimancial end and adjusted prospectively. if
appropriate,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired separately are carried at cost less aceumulated amortisation and aceumulated impainnent losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight:
line basis over their estimated vseful lives. The estmated useful life and amorusation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effeet of any
hanges in esti being ac i for on a prospective basis. The amortisation expense on ntangible assets with finite lives is recognised i the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Costs incurred towards purchase of software are depreciated using the straight-line method over a period of 3 years based on management’s estimate of useful lives of
such software, or over the license period of the software, whichever is shorter.

Derecognition of intangible asseéls

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset. measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised,

Asset Useful  Life

Chissifiention |(Vears) Amortisation method

Finite ~  3|Amortised on a straight-line basis)

Software 2
vears over the life

Tmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an assel may be impaired. [ any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is detenmined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its receverable pmount,
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Mlows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal. recent market transactions are taken mito account. if available. If no
such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation mode! is used.

An assessment is made at each reporiing date as to whether there is any indieation that previously recognized impainment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount, A previously recognized impainnent loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to detennine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impai t loss was recognized. The reversal is limited

so that the carrying mnount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been detennined, net of depreciation /
amortization, had no i

loss been enized for the asset in prior years. Such is ized in the of profit and loss.

P
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenue primarily from mailroom and courter management services. R from are idered for recagnition and
measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perfonn their respective obligations under the
contract, and the contract is lepally enforceable.

Revenue s recognised upon transfer of control of premised services (~perfo ¢ obligations™) to rs i an amount that reflects the consideration the Company

has received or expects to receive in exchange for these services (“transaction price”). Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. regardless of when the pavinent is being made. When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue
recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The contract with customer tor matlroom and courier management services, generally contains a single performance obligation and revenue towards satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured at the amount of timsaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated 1o that performance obligation,

Goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own aceount. Rather, it is tax collected on value added 10 the commodity by the seller on behalf of the
government, Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Income from Mailroom services / Courier serviees

Mailroom services consist of in-house operations of mail room and mail delivery including inter-office mails. It involves MIS peneration, cost management. vendor
mbound and outk 1 mail and pre-p ing of mails. Revenue from mailroom services are accounted as and when the related services are

rendered and is net of discounts and taxes.

Mail logistics / Courier services and pickup & delivery services refer to packing and delivery of goods/ articles. Revenue from such services are recognized as the related
services are rendered in sccordanee with the tenns and conditions of the ¢ £ agr ts with the ¢

Interest income
Interest income is recognized using the efféctive interest rate. Interest ncome 5 included under the head “Finance income™ in the statement of profit and losg.

g —




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
el o ave in mnilfions of Indian Riupees wrless orlerwise searedt

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for voods or services transferred (o the customer, [Fthe Company performs by transfurnng goods or services 10 a
customer hefore the customer pavs consideration or before pavment is due. a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents revenue in excess of billing.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
consideration is due).

litional (ic.. only the passage of time is required before payment of the

Countract liabilitics

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. 1f a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers woods o services (o the customer, a contract liability 1s recounised when the paviment is
made or the pavinent is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contraet,

f.  Financial Instruments
A financial fustrument is any contraet that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Finaneial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recogmsed initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are
attributable (o the acquisition of the fi ial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame cstablished by regulation or

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date. i.c.. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subscquent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Debt instruments at amortised cost

= Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT

= Diebt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= Equity instruménts measured at fair value throwgh other comprehensive mcome (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt s d at the ised cost 1f both the followmg conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows. and

b. Cantractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,
This category is the most relevant to the Company. Afier initial such 1l assets are | 1 at amortised cost using the effective mierest
rate (EIR) methed. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any di OF premium on isit a.nd fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impaimment are recogmsed in the profit or loss, This category generally applics
1o trade and other receivables, For more information on receivables. refer to Note 12,

Debt instrument at FVTOC]
A “debt mstrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria arc met:

a. The ohjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company reco, impainnent losses & reversals and foreign exchange pain or loss i the P&L. On
dereeognition of the asset. cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCT debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method, The Company does not have any debl instrument as at FVTOCL

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residunl eatezory for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is
classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument. which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCT eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such ¢lection is
allowed anly il doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL eatezory are measured at fir value with all changes recognized m the P&L. The Company does not have any debt nstrument
at FYTPL.

-
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Notes to the finpncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al awounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless oterise srared

Derecognition

The Company derecognises o financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership ol the asset to another party. [f the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset. the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated lability for amounts it may have 1o pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transierred financial asset, the Company 1 1o teeog the fimancial asset and also
recounises i collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

On de-recopnition of a financial asset in its enbirety, the difference between the asset’s earryi

recogmised in the Statement of profit and loss,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applics expected eredit loss model for recognising impairment loss on finaneial assets mensured at amortised cost.

pproach does not require the
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impainment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impai loss all

For recognition of impainnent loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a signifieant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. 1F credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if eredit risk has increased
ificantly, lifetime ECL is used. If. in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 1 Z-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected eredit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financinl instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from defaul events that are possible within 12 months afer the reporting date.

As  practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impainnent loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is hased
on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the irade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical

observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

1 as in the of profit and loss (P& L) This amount is reflected

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is
under the head “other expenses” in the P&L.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial linbilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of financial liabilities at amortized cost. net of direetly attributable transaction costs,
The Company’s financial liabilities include irade and other payables, bank overdrafts and statutory payables,

Subsequent measurement

All financial linbilities except derivatives are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective mierest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of'a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integml part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums ot discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability. or (where appropriate] a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

Derecognition

A fimancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability s discharued or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial linbility is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terns. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective earrving amounts is recopnised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable fegal right o offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases
The Company at inception whether a is. or ins, a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee
The Company applies a single ehnition and PP I for all leases, except tor short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
Iease liabilitics to make lease pay and right-of-use assets rep ing the right to use the underlying assets.




Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2023
(AN anrornes are in millions of Indian Rupecs wiless athenvise swted)

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company reeognises right-ol-use assets at the commentement date of the lease (iec. the date the underlving asset is available for use). Right-oftuse asscts are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and inipainnent losses. and adj 1 for any remea: tof lease habilitics. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direct eosts incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date kess any lease incentives received,
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on o straiaht line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated uselul lives ofthe assets. as follows:

Asset Classification Estimated Lseful Life (Years) |
Building 1-3 vears |

I ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease wem or the cost reflects the exercise ofa purchase option. depreciation is calewlated using
the estimated uselul life of the asset.

policies in section (g} lmpainnent of non-financial assets,

The right-ofuse assets arc also subject to impairment. Refer to the

il Lease liabilities

At the commencenient date of the lepse, the Company recognises lkease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease tenm. The
lease pavments include fived payments {including in sub = fixed pay ) less any lease incentives receivable, varizble lease payiments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected o be paid under residual value puarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recopnised as expenses (unless they are incurred (o produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that tripeers the payiment occurs.

In caleulating the present valug of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease linbilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lense
payments made. In addition. the carrying amount of fease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease lerin, a change in the lease pavinents
feg. changes 1o future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease pavments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset,

The Company's lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

iil, Short-term leases amd leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the shor-tenm lease recognition exemption 10 its short-tern leases of machinery and equipment (ie.. those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). [t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered 10 be low value. Lease payments on shon-tenn leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a siraight-line basis over
the lease tenn,

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Remtal income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs ineurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 10 the carrving
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease tenm on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue m the period in which they
are earned,

i.  Employee benefits
i. Defined Contribution Scheme
Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
funid. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an eéxpenditure, when an emplovee renders the related service, I the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable 1w the scheme is recognized as a liabiliny
after deducting the contribution already paid, If the contribution already paid exceeds the cantribution duc for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized ns an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead (o, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

ii. Defined Benefit Scheme
Gratuity

Gratuity lability under the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The Plan provides payment to vested employees al retirement, death or
termination of employment. of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The Company provides the uratuity
benefit through annual contribution to a fund managed by the Life [nsurance Corporation of India (LIC), Under this scheme the setlement obligation remains with the
Company although the LIC admini the scheme and determines the contribution premiun required to be paid by the Company, The cost of providing benefits under
this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit eredit method

Re-measurements, comprising of aetuarial gnins and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benehit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCT in the period in which they oceur.

R are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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iil. Other employment benefits
Compensated absence

The Company operates the following post-cmployiment scheines:

Accumulated leave. which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, is reated as short-tenn emplovee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
lated at the repol date.

such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitl that hos a

The Company treats aceumulated leave expected to be caried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term eimplovee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-tenn
compensated absences are pravided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method at the vear-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immed
taken 1o the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet. to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months afler the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defor the settloment
for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior exceutives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments {equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equily-settled transactions i determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is inade using an appropriate valuation model. Further details are given in
Note 38,

That cost is enised, Logether with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in emplovee benefits expense. The lative expense ised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity mstruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or
credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period rep the in ¢ lative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is

recognised m emplovee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associaled service requi , Are consi 1o be ting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the tair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance andior service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a
market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the tenins of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised &5 the arant date fir value of the unmodified award, provided the original
vesting tenns of the award are met. An additionnl expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial w the employee, Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element
of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted carnings per share.

Taxes on Income

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the mnount expected to be recovered from or paid o the xation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current incoime tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive meome or in equity ). Current tax
iteins are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direstly in equity. M periodically eval positions taken in the tax relums
with respeet to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and linbilitics and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax linbilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences ted with in subsidiaries, ites and § in joint . when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary ditferences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are o 1 anised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which

those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and lmbilities are not recognised 1f the temporary differcnce arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,
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The earrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting daté and written off 1o the extent that it s no longer probable that sullicient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrec sed deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that fiture taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liab
(and tax laws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

v is settled. based on tax rates

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax dems
n to the underlying transaction either in OC| or directly in equity.

are recognised in correl

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign eurrencies

I'he finnmeial statements of the Company is presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Initial Recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at the average rates that
closely approx imate the rate at the date of the wansaction,

Conversion

Foreian currency monetary itews are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign curreney are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction: and non-monetary items which are earried at fair value denominated
ina foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items of company at rates different From those at which they were initially
recorded during the year/period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or expenses in the year in which they arise. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fai line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item Lie. translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC or profit or loss are also recognised i OCT or profit or loss, respectively).

ir value is treate

Fair value measurement

The Company financial i at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lishility i an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is 1 using the tions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that inarket
participants act in their best economic interest.

-

A fair value of a no ial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc available to measure fair value, maximising the use of’
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fir value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level | — Quoted (unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
« Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is dircetly or indirectly observable
= Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unebservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring . the Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the
luerarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value measuroment as a whole) at the end of each reporting periad,

liwolvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be i or 1 as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major mputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes {Refer Note 40),

For the purpose of fair value discl , the Company has d ined classes ol assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset ot

liability and the level of the fair value hizrarchy as explained above (Refer Note 41). \}é
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ment reporting

Based on internal reporting provided o the chief operating decision maker, sale of services is the only operating segment for the Company. The Company operates only in
one geographical sexment. since its entire inecome is derived from services provided in India,

Earnings per share

Earmnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCH for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

ibutable 10 equity sharcholders and the weighted average

For the purpose of caleulating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCT tor the perind attr
number of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constru Yas a result of o past evenl. it 5 probable that the Company will be required 1o

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seule present obligation at the end of reporting period. taking into account the
risk and ity surrounding the abligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of these cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material), When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is rec d as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimt will be ved and the amount of receivable
can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for,

{1) Possible oblization which will be confirined only by luture events not wholly within the centrol of the Company or

{11} Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the
amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Ll

or a reliable of the

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Finaneial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economie benefits is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balanee sheet comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes i value.

For the purpese of the statement of cash {lows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shor-tenn deposits, as defined above,

i Eics

Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management 1o make estimates, judy and ptions: These

and 'issmn.ptmlu affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities af the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the vear. Application of ‘ICCl)unliIIE policies that require entical accounting

estimates mvolving complex and subjective judgements and the use of asswnptions in these financial have been disclosed i Note 39, Accounting estimates
coukl ch'\m,e from period to pcrmd Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becoines aware of
in Sur the esti Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material,

their effects are disclos deferred tax liabilities are offset if a le

Dividend

The Company recoinises a liability to pay dividend to eguity halders of the parent when the distribution is authorised. and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders, A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity.

Standards Issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Comy {Indian A ing Standards) A | Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from 01 April 2023.

(i) Definition of Ace ing Esti -A d to Ind AS 8

The amendinents clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the corection of errors. It has also been clarified
how entities use measurcment tech and inputs to develop accounting esti The | are effective for annual reporting periods beginming on or afier 1

April 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimales that occur on or affer the start of that period. The amendments are not
expected to have a matenial impact on the Company’s fi ial

(i) Disel of A ing Policics - d s to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim (o help entilies provide accounting policy disclosures that are more usefl by replacing the requirement for entities 1o disclose their “significant®
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their “material’ accounting policies and adding suidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
1 policy discl . The d o Ind AS | are applicable for annual periods beginning on or atier | April 2023, Consequential

decisions about accounting
amendments have been made in Ind AS 107. The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures 10 ensure consistency with the amended
requireiments,
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3 Property, plant and equi

& AL Intangible Asscts

3. Property, Plant and equipment 3A. Intangibles assets
Particulars Office equipments  Computer and Furniture and Total Camputer Tatal
accessorics fixtures software

Costr*

At Mareh 31,2021 2.17 1.94 1.86 5.97 .77 1.77
Additions 0.31 1.33 048 2.34 0.63 0.63
Disposals (013} (0.15) 103,09} 10.37) - -
At March 31, 2022 235 3.34 1,25 7.94 242 242
Additions 0.40 1.20 0.21 .81 0.37 0.37
Disposals (0.04) (0.6} (13} (0.33) S -|
At March 31, 2023 2.71 4.38 233 9.42 .79 2,79
Depreciation &

Amortisation

At March 31, 2021 1.53 1.66 0.68 3.87 1.25 1.25
Charge for the year 0.20 0.55 0.40 1.30 0.29 0,29
Disposals (0.13) (0.15} 10.00) (0.37) - -
At March 31,2022 1.69 2.06 1.05 4.80 1.54 1.54
Charge for the vear 0.23 0.79 021 1.23 047 0.47
Disposals (0.04) {0.15) (0.09) 10.28) - -
At March 31, 2023 .58 2.70 1.17 5.75 .01 2,01
Net Block

At March 31, 2022 0.66 1.28 120 3.4 0.88 0.88
At March 31, 2023 .83 1.68 1.16 3.67 0.78 D.Td

*On transition to Ind AS (ie. | April 2017). the Company had elected (o cominue with the carrying value of all Property. plant and equipment and [ntangible assets measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carmying value as the deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible asscis.

4 Leases
The Company has lease contracts for building used i its operations, Leases of building generally have lease terms between 1-3 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are
secured by the lessor’s title 1o the leased assets.

The Company also has certain leases of building and fumiture and fittings with lease terins of 12 months or less. The Company applies the “short-term lease” and “lease of low-value
assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases,

Particulars of Right-of-use assets Building Total

At March 31,2021 1.99 1.99
Additions - -
Depreciation expense (170} {1.70)
At March 31,2022 0.29 0.29
Additions 3.60 5.60
Depreciation expense 1044y 044
At Mareh 31, 2023 545 545

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year,

Partieulars A et
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 041 215
Additions 5.60 -
Accretion of interest 0.05 0.12
Payments [Total cash outflows] {0.59) (1.96)
Closing Balance 547 0.41
Current .62 0.41
Non-curreni 385 -

The maturity analysis of lease Habilities are disclosed in Note 42 (Financial risk management objectives and policies). The effective interest rate for lease liabilitics is 9%. with
maturity between 2023-2026.

The following are the ameunts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets | 0.44 1.70
Interest expense on lease liabilities (.05 0.12
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in other expenses) %12 6.33
Total amount recognised in profit or loss .61 8.15

—
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Note Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loans
5 Non Current (At amortised Cost)

(Considered good, Unsectired unless stated otherwise)

Loans o related parties (Refer Note 37) 40.00 =
40.00 -
# Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
As at As at
Name of the loance March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited ** {Unsecured @ 9% p.a.) 40.00 -

# The non-current loan will be paid within 18 months starting from each loan date in financial year 2022-23,

Type of borrower Amount of loan or advance| Percentage fo the
in the nature of loanftotal Loans and
outstanding Advances in  the|

|na!grg i:! lﬂé]"ﬁ

Related parties 40.00 100%|

40.00 100%

Other financial assets

Non-current (At amortised Cost)

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Rental deposits 7.04 233

Interest accrued and not due 1.47 -

Other deposits 0.01 0.01

8.52 2.34

Other financial assets

Current (At amortised cost)

{Considered good. Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Interest accrued 4.36 2.80

Rental deposits 323 3.16

7.59 5.96

Other assets

Non-current

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Prepaid Expenses - 0.36

- 0.36

Other assets

Current Asset

(Considered good, Unsecured unless stated otherwise)

Prepaid expenses® 1.44 1.02

Balance with government authorities 3.31 0.02

Advances lor supply of goods / services

- considered good 3.03 3.50

- credit impaired 0.26 >
3.29 3.50

Less: Provision For doubtful advances 0.26) -
3.03 3.50

Other advances 0.01 0.01
7.79 4.55

Includes expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility in excess of related obligation till year-end, Also refer note 29A.
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Note Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
10 Deferred tax asset (Net)
Provision for employee benelits 10.10 9.70
Provision for litigations 1.06 (.98
Expenditure covered by section 438 of Income tax Act, [961 12.87 10.26
Excess ol depreciation / amortisation on fixed assets under income tax law over the depreciation 0.86 0.98
amortisation provided in accounts
Other disallowances under Income-tax Act. 1961 292 1.84
27.81 23.76
Reconciliation of deferred tax (net):
Opening balance 23.76 21.20
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 4.19 2.54
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI (0.13) 0.02
Closing balance 27.81 23.76
11 Income tax asset (Net)
Advance income tax (net of provision) 33.86 13.08
33.86 13.08
12 Trade Receivables (At Amortised Cost)
Trade receivables 117.82 230.70
Trade receivable from related parties (Note 37) 0.02 1.18
117.84 231.88
Security details
Unsecured, considered good 117.84 231.88
Unsecured, credit impaired 3.32 748
121.16 239.36
Impairment allowanee (provision for expected credit loss of trade receivables)
Trade Receivables - credit impaired (3.32) (7.48)
(3.32) (7.48)
117.84 231.88
Trade receivables ageing schedule
Trade Reecivables (At Amortised Cost)
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good
- Not due 60.02 39.15
- Less than 6 months 55.20 141.70
- 6 months - 1 year 2.60 0.92
- 1-2 years - 0.09
= 2-3 years - 0.01
- More than 3 vears - -
117.82 231.88
(ii) Undisputed Trade Reccivables — eredit impaired
- Not due - -
- Less than 6 months 0:29 -
- 6 months - | year 0.41

- 1-2 years
- 2-3 years
- More than 3 years

0.16
0.06
240

3.32
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As at As at

Note Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

13 Cash and cash cquivalents
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 5.50 1.22
(ash in hand * 0.00 0.01
5.50 1.23
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Non-current)
- In deposit accounts (maturity more than 12 months)*** 53.00 6.00
53.00 6.00
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Current)
- In deposit accounts (maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months J##* 161.42 169.92
161.42 169.92
For the purpose of statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
On current accounts™** 5.50 1.22
Cash in hand 0.00 0.01
5.50 1.23

#Represents value below T 5,000
“*The company had available INR 20.50 million (March 31, 2022: INR 9.62 million) of undrawn borrowing facilitics. The company pledged a part of its Fixed

depositand Trade receivable to fulfil collateral requirements.
#=5#The bank deposits amounting to INR 15.50 million (March 31, 2022: INR 15.50 million) are carmarked against overdraft facility.
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45 ital
Asat Asat
Particul
AR March 31,2023 | Mareh 31, 2022
Authorised
0.0 (Mareh 31.2022; 20,000} equity shares of Rs 100 each 200 300
Issned. subscribed and paid up
20,845 (March 31, 20220 2345 equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid up 248 T45
a) Reconciliation of shares ontstan inning and at the end of the re
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars 2 -
No, of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 2845 248 TZR4S 258
Add: Shares issued during the year * x . -
Less: Buvback of equity shares (refer note below) . - A6 {041y
Qutstanding at the end of the year 24845 248 24,845 248

Note:

The Board af Directors at its meeting held on December 18. 2021, approved a proposal to buy-back up 1o 4.000 equity shares of the Company for an aggregate amount not exceeding T 44.14
million, being 12.87% of the total paid up equity share capital a1 @ [1.033 per equity share. The sharcholders approved the same on December 22, 2021, by way of a special resolution, The
Company bought back 4,000 equity shares out of the sharcs that were tendered by cligible shareholders and extinguished the equity shares on December 29, 2021, Capital redemption reserve was
created to the extent of share capital extinguished (2 0.40 million). The corresponding tax on buy-back of ¥ 10.19 million were offset from retained earnings,

b} Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equits shares having a par value of T 100 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The Company declares dividend in Indian
Kupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets of the Company. afier diswribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

) Agsregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five vears immediately preceding the reporting
Parifeulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021 March31, 2020 March 31,2009 March 31, 2018

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by - = -

C lization of securities pr

Equity shares bought back by the company 4000 - - -

) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

ik AT SharetoNEse As at March 3 2 As at March 31, 2022
No, of shares held | % of halding No. of shures held %o of holding
Equity shares
Updater Services Limited 18,383 TE.00% 18,883 76.00%
Latha Krishna Kumar 3962 240070 5.962 24.00%)
Total 24.845 100.00% 24,845 100.00%

As per records of the company, ingluding its regi
both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

¢ ol shareholders members and other declarations received from sharebolders regarding beneficial interest. the above shareholding represents

¢} Shares held by holding company and / or their subsidiarics / associates:
Particulars

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

Upiliter Services Limited, the holding company

15,883 cquity shares of Rs 100 each (March 31, 2022: 18,333 shares) 1.89 L

) Dividend on equity shares declared and paid:
During the vear ended March 31, 2023, the company had declared and paid an interim dividend of 3 1600 per share (Previous year: Nib), aggregating to 2 39.75 million (Frevious year: Nil}. There
are no proposed dividends for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2012,

1t} Shareholding of promoter:

Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
NName:of promeley No. of shares held | % of total share Yashange during No. of shares held | % of total share Yo chapic
the year during the year
Equity shares
Updater Services Limited 18883 76.00% 0.00% 18.883 76.00% (0.00%,
Latha Krishna Kumar 5062 24.00% 0.00% 54062 24040 0.00%
Total 24845 100.00% 24845 100.00%
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Note

Asat As at

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

15

Other equity

Retained earnings 274.59 24742
General reserve 26.60 26.60

Capital redemption reserve 0.40 0.40
Additional paid in captial = S
Securitics premium

301.59 274.42

Nature and purpose of other reserves

(i) General Reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1936, general reserve was created through an annual transler of net income at a specified percentage in
accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that
year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to
general reserve has been withdrawn, However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with
the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Sceurities Premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) Capital redemption reserve

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of [ree reserves or securities
premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve, The reserve is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of sceetion 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) Retained earnings

The amount can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity sharcholders is determined based on the financial statements of the
Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Thus, the amounts reported above may not be distributable in
entirety.

Provisions

Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 17.70 16.86
17.70 16.86

Current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 36) 7.24 745

Provision for Leave Benefits 15.21 14.21
22.45 21.66

* Movement in provisions Provision for gratuity

As at beginning of the year 24,31 22.87

Add: Provision during the year 373 3.95

Less: Provision utilised during the year (3.10) (2.51}

As at end of the year 24.94 24.31

Provision for leave benefits

As at beginning of the year 14.21 9.88

Add: Provision during the year 3.3% 6.60

Less: Provision utilised during the year (2.59) (2.27)

As at end of the year 15.21 14.21

Borrowings (At Amortised Cost)
Cash credit from banks (secured) - 10.88
- 10.88
—

The company availed overdraft facility from HDFC and Kotak bank at an interest rate ranging from 8.60% to 10.10%. The overdraft facility
limits to Z 20.50 million and the same is secured by licn on fixed deposits of 2 15.50 million. The company has not utilized the overdraft I'l(.l]lly
during the current year and therefore the balance has been regrouped under Cash and Cash Equivalents. 5

.\Il'. G
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Asat As at

Wokt  Entizilats March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

19 Trade payables (At Amortised Cost)
Trade Payables

Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 0.29 0.26
Dues to other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 18.72 33.62
Dues to related parties {refer note 37) 0.01 0.49

19.02 34.37

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60-days term. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note
37).

Trade payables ageing sehedule
(i) Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
a) Undisputed

- Not due - -
- Less than | year 0.29 0.26
- 1-2 years - -
- 2-3 years - -
- More than 3 years - -
0.29 0.26
(ii)} Related parties
a) Undisputed
- Not due 0.01 0.45
- Less than | year - 0.04
- 1-2 years - -
- 2-3 years - -
- More than 3 vears - -
0.01 0.49
(iii) Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
a) Undisputed
- Not due 13.60 8.92
- Less than | year 3.17 24.14
- 1-2 years 1.65 0.15
- 2-3 years 0.07 0.30
- More than 3 years 0.23 0.11
18.72 33.62
20 Other current financial liabilities (At Amortised Cost)
Employee benelits payable 77.61 69.75
Advance from customers 256 1.94
Other payables to related parties (refer note 38) 0.87 -
Others 0.90 0.90
§1.94 72.59
21 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues and related liabilities 18.36 12.00
Provision against PF order (refer note below) 422 3.38
22.58 15.88

Note

The Company received an order from the High Court (against the appeal made by the PI° department) directing the Company to pay PF on
certain allowances to be considered for PF computation for the salary paid for the period FY 2007-12, Based on the High court order and in
compliance with Supreme Court judgement in 2019, the Company has created provision amoeunting for ¥ 2.83 million (March 31, 2022: ¥ 2.83
million). Further, the Company has also accrued for interest during the year amounting to T (.34 million (March 31, 2022: T 1.05 million)

22 Liabilities for current tax (net)
Liabilities for current tax (net) =
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in miltions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended

Nete  Facteubas March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

23  Revenue from operations
Sale of services 604.53 77544
604.53 775.44

Other disclosures
Disaggregated revenue information

Sale of Mailroom management services 183.15 166.61
Sale of Courier services 381.80 587.51
Sale of Other services 39.58 21.32

604.53 775.44

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 381.80 587.51
Services transferred over time 222.73 187.93
Total revenue from contracts with customers 604.53 775.44

Contract Balances
Contract Assets - Trade Receivables 117.84 231.88
Contract Liabilities - Advance from customers 2.56 1.94

24  Other income
Other non-operating income - 0.48
- 0.48

25 Finance income

Interest income - Bank deposits 10.35 4.28

Interest income - Loan to related parties 1.33 -

Interest income - Others - 0.15
11.68 443

26  Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 239,54 211.23
Contribution to provident and other fund 19.46 17.01
Gratuity expense (refer note 36) 425 3.87
Employee Stock Option Expense (refer note 38) 0.87 -
Staff welfare expenses 4.65 245
268.77 234.56

27  Finance costs

Interest on lease liabilities 0.05 0.12
Other borrowing costs 0.37 0.28
0.42 ) 0.40

28 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (Refer Note 3) 1.23 1.30
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 3A) 0.47 0.29
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 4) 0.44 1.70

2.14 3.29
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amownis arve in mitlions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Year ended

Year ended

il it March 31,2023 March 31,2022
29 Other expenses
Communication expenses 0.55 0.53
Clearing and freight forwarding charges 3.56 0.49
CSR (refer note A below) 241 1.20
Insurance 16.14 23.10
Legal and professional fees 3.54 3.12
Postage and courier charges 170.42 255.90
Power and fuel 0.89 0.76
Printing and stationery 9.01 16.49
Payment to auditor (Refer note B below) 0.81 0.80
Rates and taxes 297 4.80
Rent 9,12 6.33
Repairs and maintenance - others .23 1.04
Travelling and conveyance 15.87 10.71
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.01 0.01
Provision / (reversal) for expected credit loss of trade receivables {4.16) 1.98
Provision for doubtful advances 0.26 -
Bad debts written off 0.85 -
Miscellaneous expenses 11.23 7.74
244.71 335.00
A. Details of CSR expenditure:
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 241 1.20
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 2.50 1.32
¢) Amount spent during the year (In cash)
(1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2.50 1.32
d) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
(1) Others - -
(ii) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongoing project - -
¢) Shortfall at the end of the year 2 -
f} Reason for shortfall NA NA

) Nature of CSR activities undertaken by the company
g) Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure
h) Details of excess amount spent by the company:

Ensuring environmental sustainability
and Promotion of health and education

NA
0.21

NA

0.12

During the year, the Company has an excess CSR spent of ¥ 0.21 million (March 31, 2022: INR 0.12 million) for it proposes to
offset against future obligations and has recognised the same as an asset in the balance sheet:

Opening Balance

Amount required to be spent during the year
Amount spent during the year

Closing Balance

B. Payment to anditors:

As auditors :
Audit fee

In other capacity :
Reimbursement of expenses

(0.12) -
241 1.20
250 1.32

(0.21) (0.12)
0.80 0.80
0.01 -
0.81
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note

Year ended Year ended

—
At March 31,2023 March 31,2022

30

31

Income Tax Expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
Profit and Loss Section

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current income tax;

Current income tax charge 20.64 55.79
Tax related to earlier years® 8.19 229
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {4.19) (2.54)
Total Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 33.64 55.54

Other Comprehensive income (OCI) Section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the period:

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations (net) 0.52 (0.07)
Income tax charged to OCI 0.13 (0.02)

* During the year, the Company has made a re-assessment of the recoverability of various taxes / refund, based on which the
management has written off amounts aggregating to INR 4.94 million during the year as they were considered doubtful of recovery.

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and
Mareh 31, 2022
—_— v e = e

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard rate of
corporation tax in India for the Company as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Accounting Profit before income tax 100.17 207.10
Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
Profit before income tax multiplied by enacted tax rate 25.21 52.12
Effects of:
Interest on income tax 0.11 (.86
Tax related to earlier years 8.19 229
Contribution to CSR 0.61 033
S80JJAA Deduction (0.89) -
Others 0.41 (0.06)
Net effective income tax 33.64 55.54

Earnings per equity share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Paitloulies Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit after tax 66.53 151.56
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 24,845 27,716
Effect of dilution:

Employee stock options = >
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 24,845 27,716
Earning per share of Rs. 10 each
- Basic 2,677.84 5,468.36
- Diluted 2,677.84 5.468.36
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There are no open commitments for the Company or contingent labilities for the Company as at March 31, 2023 o in the previous vears.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in mailtoom managemen and associated services and the operation primanly eaters 1o the domestic marker. The Managi irector of the company has been identified as
heing the chief operating decision maker (CODM) evaluates the company’s pecformance. allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performanee indicator of the company as a single unit,
Therefire, there is no reponable scement for the company as per the requirement of Ind-AS 103 "Operating Seus . The Company's operations are only in one geographical segment. since s enfine
income is derived fiom sales made in India.

Details of dues 1o Micro, Smull and Medivm Enterprises
Information as required o be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (MSMED Act) tor the vear ended March 31,2023 is given below, This
information has been détermined fo the extent such pa have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company:

Asat Asal

It
Facitulans March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid o any supplier 28 at the end of cach accounting vear

Principal amount due to micro and small enterpnses 029 0.26
Interest due on above = iR
(b Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appointed day. during & =
the year

te} Interest paid 1o suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16} - =
(d) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MEMED Act. for pavments already made - =
{e) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the vear to suppliers under MSMED Act - -

Capital Management
Far the purpose of the Company's capital management. capital includes issucd equity capital and all other equity reserves auributable to the equity holders, The prmary objective of the company's
capital is to imise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its eapital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To mainialn or adjust the capital
structure, they may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders. return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company manitors capital using total equity attributable 1o owners and return on
capital employed (RoCE).

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax H0.17 207.10)
Less: Finance Income £11.68) 14,43y
Add: Finance Cost 0.42 (.40
Earnings before interest and taxes BE.91 203.07]
Equity share capital 248 245
(Other equity 3159 2742
Capital employed 304.07] 276.90
RoCE (%) 29.24%, T3.34%)

No changes were made in the ohjectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

36 Disclosure pursuant 1o lnd AS 19 " Employee benefits”:

(i) Defined congribiion plan:

‘The Company's provident fund are the defined contribution plan. An amount of 2 15.39 million being contribution made to recognised provident fund is recognised as expense for the vear ended March
31, 2023 (March 31, 2022, € 1334 million) and included under Employee benefit expense {Note 26) in the Statement of Profit and loss

{ii} Defined benefit plans:
The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The cratuity plan is sovemed by the Payinent of Gratuity Act. 1972 Under the Act. every emplovee who has completed 5 vears of
service are eligible for gratuity on deparure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for cach completed year of service, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's lenoth of service and salary at

retirement.

A. The amounts recosnised in Balance Sheet arc as follows:

Particulars Gratuity
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 2578
Fair value of plan assets 0.53)
Ainount o be recognised as hability or (asset) 24.95]
B} Amounts reflected in the Bakince Sheet
493 4.3

lity / (asset) 24.95| 24,31
Curment 7.4 7.45|
Non - Current 17.7 16.8
B. The amounis recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:
Particulars Gratuity plan

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Service cost :
Curnent service cost 274 2.56
Past service cost and loss (Lain) on curtailments and setflement 4 =
Net intevest cost -
Intercst Expense on Defined Benefit Obligation 137 1.39]
Interest Income on Plan Asscts (0.06) (007
Totalincluded in "Employce Benefit Expense’ 4.25 3,88
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36 Disclosure pursuant 1o lud AS 19 *Employ ee benelits™: (continued)

C. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive incame

Particulars

Gratuity plan
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

Componens of actuarial gain losses on obligations due to change in fnancial | graphi ot expericnee adj LAY .04
Return on plan assets 001 0,03
Total 151 0.07]
D. The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconeilintion of o) iz and closing balances thereol are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity plan

Asat Asan
March 31. 2023 Murch 31, 2022

Opening defined benefit obligaiion R 2408
Current service cost 2.50|
Interest cost 137 1.39]
Actumtal losses {gains) due to change in financial assumptions  demowraphic assumplion  experience adjustments {L52) 0.04
Benefit Pard (3.3 {2.75)
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit oblization 15.78) 1532

E. The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows

Matutity tables

Particulars Gratuity plan
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
‘Opening defined benefit obligation 1.01 1.21
Actual return on assets L (.04
Emplover Contribution RAL il
Benefit Paid (3,33} (2,75
Closing balance of the fair value of plan assets .83 1.01
E. Reconciliation of Net Linbility / (Asset)
Particulars Gratulty plan
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net Ligbility (Asset) at the beginning of the period 2430 22.87]
Defined Benefit cost included in the Profit Loss .25 388
Defined Benetit cost included in Other Comprehensive Income {032 0.07]
Benefit Paid {3 10Y (231H
Net Liability / {Asset) at the end of the period 1.4 2431
G. Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date:
Particulars Gratuity plan
Asal As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Diiscount rate 7.30%| . 19%
Salary growth ratc 6.10%) T.37%
Anrition rate 28.00%s at all awes J1.33% at all ages|
Retirement age A8.00 38.00
Average future service (in yvears) 27,39 vears 27.29 vears|

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
Liliimate Table

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2023
Change Obligation
Discount rate +0.5%

Salary growth rae

Attrition
|Particulars Asat
March 31, 2022
Change | Obligation
Diseount rate it 2504
3% 25.61
Salary growth rate +1.0% 2589
-L.0% 24.77
Attrition +3.0% 2186
-5.0% 25.86

L. Expected cashflows based on past service liability

Particulars Gratuity plan
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Year | 749 149
Year2 A 5.34
Year3 434 434
Year 4 A% 315
Year s 248 3143
Next S vears 4,73 6.73
J. The major categories of plan ussets of the fair value of the total plan assets:
Particulars Gratuity plan
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Investment Details
Insurer ved assels 083
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A7 Reluted party transactions

a) Names of related parties and nature of ¢ are as [ollows:

Mr._Ragh T

Updater Senvices Limited

ey Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. P.D.Rajan (M. ny Director)

Mr Jayaraman LB { Divector)

Subsidiaries of Holding Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited
Tanwy Supplics and Selutions Private Limited
Marrix Business Services India Private Limired
Washroom Hypiene Concept Private Limited

b)_Related party transactions

Tarticulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Sale of services

Updater Services Limired .01 -

Washroom Hyuiene Coneept Private Limited R 0.82

Matrix Business Services India Private Limited - 0.0l

Purchase of Material

Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited (.03 -

‘Washroom Hygiene Concept Private Limited 0.03

Purchase of Fixed assets
Washroom Hygiene Concept Private Limited 0.01 .08
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limited - (.00%

Other Expenses

Updater Services Limited +4.26 357
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited 0.04 006
Loan given

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited 40,00 -
Interest acerued on loan given

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited 133 2
Dividend Paid

Updater Services Limited 20,21 -

Employec Stock Option Expense

Mr. D .Rajan 0.4 -
Managerial remuneration
Mr. P Rajan 1.63 7.18
¢) Balances outstanding as at year/period end:

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payable
Matrix Business Serviees India Private Limited - 004
Tangy Supplics and Solutions Private Limited 0.00 -
Washroom Hygiene Concept Private Limited 0.00 0.00¢
Updater Services Limited % (43

Loan receivable
(Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited 40,00 =

Interest on Loan receivable

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited 1.33 -
Other payables

Updater Services Limited 087 -
Trade receivable )

Washroom Hyzicne Concept Private Limited - 012
Matrix Business Services India Private Limited® 00 -
Tangy Supplies and Solutions Private Limired 002

Managerial remuneration Payable
Mr. P Rajon 0,24 0.2

*Represents values less than 3 5,000,

The breakup of compensation 1o key managenial p | is follows:

Consideration of key management personnel Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Shoit term benefits# 337 T8

Post employment benefits** - -

Other long terin benefits®* =

“#The vemuneration (o the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for eratuity and leave benefits, as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole
= The employee steck compensalion expenses for the vear ended March 31. 2023 include charges of INR 0.24 million (March 31, 2022: INR Nil) tawards key managedal personnel respectively.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
The sales 1o and pmthases from related party are made on tenns equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length iransactions. Owistanding balances at the vear-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement oeeurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating 1o amounts owed by related panics (March 31, 2022 NIL).
assessment is undertaken cach finaneial vear through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operaies. o
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38 Shave-based payments

Employce Stock Option Plan 2022
The Company s eovered under the Employes Stock Option Schemes "Updater Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 (“ESOP 20227 or “Plan™) which was approved by the sharcholders of Updater
ces Limited (Holding company | on December 2. 2022, The primary objective of the above sehiemes is 10 reward certain cmplovess of holding Company and its subsidianics for their association.

dedication and contribution 1o the woals of the Company.

Under the Scheme, 90.000 options wese granted 1o the cerlain emplovers at an exercise price of 2 300 in multiple ranches. The options issued under the plan has a tenm of 1-3 vears as provided in the
stock eprons grant letier and vest based on the enure served by such employecs,

The Holding Company has also granted cenaim options during the year to such emplovees which vest based on non-market finked performance conditions related to the Company over a 4 year period.
which is stipulated in the respeetive trant letters issued 1o the employees, The performance condition for FY 2022-23% (Tranche |} has been communicated to respective employees. while for Tranches 2.
4. these will be communicated in future. Further: the Plan also provides ability for the employeé to cateh up any unvested options for a particular Tranche in the next vear provided the performance
conditions specified for the next financial vear are achieved

When exercisable. each option is conventible imo one equity share of Face value of Rs. 10 - ¢ach fully paid up.

Management has estimated and also considersd future projections in determining the number of options expected ta be vested and has accounted for the ESOP expense accordingly.

The expense recognised for share options during the year ended March 31, 2023 is INR 0.87 million [Mareh 31 2022: INR Nil]. This amount will be paid by the Company 10 its helding Company in
connection with the ESOP plan,

A Details of ESOP 2022

Tenure Based Performance based
Name of the scheme - ESOP 2022 Trunche =T I Tranche-E I
Date of grant 16-Dee-22] 16-Dec-22
Numnber granted 44,994 43,005
Exercise price (in INR} 300 300
Vesting period 4 Years Graded Vesting |4 Years Graded Vesting
_Fs‘rvicc Condition - Performance Condition - EBITDA
Vesting Condition Tenure based Based
Method of Setil Equity-Sctiled Equity-Seitled
Method of Accounting Fair Value Fair Value
Method of valuation Black Scholes Model Black Scholes Model
B, Movement in the options granted to employees
Number of options Weighted Averase Exercise Price
As at Asat Asal r As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Options uranted during the vear Q000 . 00 -
Oprions exercised during the vear = " = ¥
Options forfeited during the vear - - -
Options expired during the vear - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 90,000 > 300 =

Excrcisable at the end of the vear s = =

€. Fair value of options granted

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used For computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Exercise price (INR} kill]
Expected volatility A1.50%:
Expected dividend vield {%0) 0%
Risk free interest rates TA3%
Expected life of the option: NA
~As on grant date ; 16-12-2022 2-33 Years
Weighted averape share price 20345

Fair Value of the Option as on Grant date Rs:

59 -Rs 11383

The expected Tife of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is nol necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may oecur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the hisiorical volatility over a period similar to the Iife of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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4.1 Foreis

Signili ing jud i and i
The preparation of the Company’s linancial statements requires u 1o make jud: 5. €508 and pions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels angd
liabilities. and the accompany

i disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent labilities. Uneertainny about these assumptions and estimates could result in ourcomes that tequire a material
adjustment 1o the carrying amount of assets or labilites affected in future periods,

Estimates sl assumptions

I'he key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainiy at the reporting date. that have a significant risk of cousing a material adjustment wo the carrving amounts
of asscts and liabilities within the next finangial vear. are deseribed befow. The Company based its ions and onp available when the Minancial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptions about futire developments. however, may change due 1o market changes or circumistances arising bevond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the asstmptions when they oceur,

#) Defined benefit plans (grawity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit wratuity plan and other post-employment leave encashiment benefit and the present value of the aratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
aetuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from acwal developments in the future, These include the detenmination of the discount rate, future salany increases and
montality rates, Due 1o the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumpions. are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject (o change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India. the management considers the interest rate of government bonds
where remaining maturity of such bond comespond to expected term of defined benefit obligation, The mortality ate is based on publicly available mortality table in India. The momnality tables tend
1o change only at interval in response Lo demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,

b Shared based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based pavment tsansactions requires determination of the nost sppropriate valuation model. which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant, This estimate

also reguires determination of the most appropriate inputs 1o the valuation model including the expected life of the share option volatility. dividend yield and performance conditions, and making

assumptions about them. The Black Scholes valuation model has been used by the ) . for share-based transactions, The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
hare-based payment ions are disclosed in Note 38

The carryving amount of financial assets and financial liabil in the financial statements are a teasonable approximation of their fair values sinee the Campany does not anticipate that the cartyving
amounts would be significanty different from the values that eventually be received or setthed.

Fair value hierarchy
The following rable presents the carrying amounts and fair value of each catesory of financial asscts and liabilities:

Carrying Values Fair Values
Particulars Asat As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial Assels
Loans (Level 3) A0.00 - 40.00 -
Total 40.00 - 4000 -

There have been 0o transfers between the levels during the year,
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents. trade receivables. loans. other current financial assets. shon lerm borrowings, rade pavables and other current (inancial labilitics
approximate their earrying amoums largely due to the shor-tenm maturities of these instruments.

Notes

Notes

Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date,
Level 2 inputs are inpuls other than quoted prices included within level | thar are observable for the asset or fiability, either direetly or indirectly.
Level § inputs are unabservable inputs for the asset or labilicy,

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities s borrowings, wade payables and employee benefit payable, The main purpose of these financial Habilities is to raise finance for the Company’s
aperations, The Company has various financial assets such as loan. trade and other receivables, cash and shor-tenn deposits, which arise directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed o market risk. eredit risk and Hguidity 1isk, The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company s prmary risk management focus is
to mininize powential adverse effects of liquidity and credit risk on iss financial performance, The Company’s risk manaeeiment assessment and policies and processes are esta
analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set approprate risk limits and controls. and o monitor such risks and compliznce with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company s activities, The following disclosures summarises the company’s exposure to financial visks,

currency risk
Change in currency Effect on Profit before tax Effect on Equity
Particulars
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
+5%, Lol 0.13 0.01 013
bl D 0.01) 0.13) 000 015




Avon Sol

Not

inns & Logisties Private Limited
nckal statements for the year ended Marceh 31, 2023

es fo the

1A et ave in mifiions of Idioe Ripees unless otherwise sated)

4

4.

2 Financial eisk nunagement objectives and policies (Continued)

2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the 1isk that counterpany’ will not meet its oblizations under a financial i snt o customer ¢ontiaet, leading to a finaneial loss, Credit risk encompasses of both. the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of credibworthi as well ag jon of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis
to whom the credit hias been granted afier obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {prmanily trade receivables) and loans
receivables,

Trade and other receivables

In cases of customers where eredit is allowed, the averape credit period on such sale of

policy, procedures and control relating w0 credit risk Credit qu
and i receivalles ave vegularly monitored.

ods ranges from | doy to 90 days, The customer credit risk 18 managed by the Company s established
v of a customer is assessed based on the individual eredit limits are defined in accordance with this

Tnd AS requires an entity to recoenise in profit or 10ss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is reguired o adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is
required 10 be recopnised in aceordance with Ind AS 109, The Company assesses at ¢ach date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired,
Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal 1o the | 2 month expected credit losses or at an amaunt equal to the life time expected credit losses if the eredit risk on the financial asset has
increased sienificantly sinee initial recognition.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit |oss allowance for trade receivables based on a age wise provision matrix which is prepared considering the historical
data for collection of receivables.

Exposure to credit risk:
The carrving amount of ial assets rep the i credit exposure. The maximum exposure o credit risk is ¥ 11784 million and T 23188 million as of March 31,2023 and March 31,
2022 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with trade receivables net of provision for expecied credit loss.

Movement in the expected eredit loss allowance of financial assets

Particulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 748 5.50
Add: Provided  (reversed) durng the year (4. 1) 1.98
Balance at the end of the year .32 748

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s finan,

instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in interest tates on that portion of loans and borrowings affecied. with all other variables held constant. the
Company s profit before tax is affected through the impact on foeating rate borrowings. as follows;

Effect on profit before tax Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Increase in rate by 2% 001 .01
Decrease in rate by 2% ol (0.01)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of hquidite risk management 15 to mainiain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are available to meet s liabilities when due. under both nonnal and stressed conditions, withaut incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The
Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a repular basis. The Company’™s objective is 10 mainiain a balance between continuity of funding and fexibility through the use of bank
overdrafls,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of financial liabilities based on Conractual undiscounted payments:

2
Particulars Less than 12 Months Dlore b2 Total

months
As at March 31, 2023
(her Financial Lial 81.04 - 31.94
Trade Pavables 19.02 - 19.02
Lease Liabilities 2.05 +21 6.26
103.01 4.21 107.22
—— =
As at March 31, 2022
Bormowings 1088 - 10,88
Other Financial Liabilities 72.59 - 7259
Trade Payables 34.37 - 337
Lease Lisbilities .43 - 043
118.27 - 118.27
== ——

43 Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security. 2020
Parliament has agproved the Code on Wages. 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 which govem, and are likely to impact, the contribistions by the Company towards ceviain employee
benefits. The government has released drafi rules for these Codes and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the concemed Ministry. The effective date
of these Codes have not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes as and when they become effective and will provide for the appropriate impact in its financial
statements in the period in which, the Cade becomes effective and the related rules 1o determine the financial impact are published,

1 ; /
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44 Ratio Analysis and its clements

Ratio Numerator Denominator Ma rc:;l: 2023 Ma rc:;:f 2022 Y yariance Reason for Variance

a) Current ratio (in limes) Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.03 244 -16.59%

b} Prebt-Equity ratio {in times) Total Debt Equity 0.02 0.04 -55 88% | Decrease m debt due to non-
utilisation  of  overdraft
facility

¢} Debt service coverage ratio (in | Earnings available for debt service |Debt serviee 794 10529 -92 46% | Deerease i debt due to non-

times) utilisation  of  overdrafl
facility

d) Return on equity ratio {in %) Met profit Average total equity 22 90% 66.38% -65,50% [Decrease in ratio due to
reduction in revenue [ profit
from courter business

¢} Trade receivables tumover ratio {Sales Average receivable 346 448 -2277%

{in times)

f} Net capital tumover ratio {in Sales Waorking capital 3.9 318 24.66%

limes)

£} Net profit ratio (in %} Net profit Sales 11.01% 19.55% -43,69% |Decrease in ratio due to
reduction in revenue / profit
from courier

h) Return on capital employed (in | Eaming Before Interest and Taxes |Capital employed 33.08% 74.94% -55.85% |Decrease m ratio duc ol

%) {EBIT} reduction in revenue / profiy
from courier business

45 Other Statutory Information
{1) The Company does not liave any Benami property, where any p ding has been mitiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

{ii) The Company does not have any ions with the p struck off.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the year,

(iv) The Company has net traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year

{v) During the year, the Company advanced loans of Rs, 40.00 million to its telhw subsidiary, Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited (GFHSPL' CIN U74900TN2014PTC097283) on
various dates towards funding requ for | Subsequently, GFHSPL has further advanced loans aggregating Rs. 2.92 million, Rs. 9 43 million, Rs. 2.11 million, Rs, 14,93
million and Rs. 254 million to it's subsidiaries, namely Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private limited (CIN U93090PN2021 PTC198665), Global Flight Handling Services (Patna) Private
limited (CIN U62200BR2021PTCG52021), Global Flight Handling Services (Raipur) Private himited (CIN Us3040CT2021PTC012256), Global Flight Handling Services (Vizag) Private limited
(CIN U62100AP2021PTCT 18299) and Global Flight Handling Services (Surat) Private limited (CIN U63030GJ2021 PTC126393) respectively on various dates for the purpose of providing funding
to these step-down subsidiaries in connection with their pursuit of flight handling services business at the respective airports operated by these entities during the year

The Company has complied with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act for the above transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15

0f 2003)
details of the intermediary and Ultimate Benefici
Government . I
Name of the entity Registered Address Identification Rclalu;nsh:p with the
Number (CIN) im0
Global Fhight Handlimg Services Private Limited (Intermediary) "Rayala Towers", Tower [I, First Floor, Mew No. 158 Old No.781, Shop|UT4900TN2014P |Fellow Subsidiary
No.24A, Anna Salai, Chennai TN 600002 TCO97283
Global Flight Handling Services (Patna) Private Limited (Ultimate Dwoor No 401, 4th Floor, OP Complex P N Mall Road (Patliputra - Kurji|Us2200BR2021 P |Fellow Subsidiary
Beneficiary) Road) NA Paina Patna BR 800010 1IN TCO52021
Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private Limited (Ultimate NO 101, AMRUT SIDDHI APARTMENT, Lakshmi Park, BEHIND BHIDE|U93090PN2021P | Fellow Subsidiary
Beneficiary) HOPSPITALNAVI PETH NA PUNE Pune MH 411030 IN TC198665
Global Flight Handling Services (Raipur) Private Linmted (Ultimate OTB GROUND FLOOR, SWAMI VIVEKANANDA AIRPORT, MANA|U63040CT2021P | Fellow Subsidiary
Beneficiary) NA RAIPUR Raipur CT 492015 IN TCOI2256
Global Flight Handling Services (Surat) Private Limited (Ultimate CABIN NO2, FIRST FLOOR, INSIDE TERMINAL BUILDING|U63030G12021P |Fellow Subsidiary
Beneficiary) ARRIVAL HALL, ATC BUILDING, DUMAS ROAD, NA SURAT Surat|TC126393
Global Flight Handling Services { Vizag) Private Limited (Ultimate First Floor, D:No. 1-168, Susarla Colony Gopalapatnam NA Visakhar UGZ100AP2021P |Fellow Subsidiary
Beneficiary) Vishakhapatnam AP 530027 IN TC118299

This space has been infentionally fefi blank
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45 Other Statutory Information (Continued)
(w1} The Company has not received any (und from any persons or entilivs. including foreivn entities (Funding Parivh with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or othenwise) that the
company shall:
ta) directly or indirecily fend or invest in other persons o entities identitied inamy manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or
Al provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.
{41) The Company has not any such transaction which is not fecorded in the books of accounts that has been surendered or disclosed as income during the peried in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961,

46 Maintenance of books and records of the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Alfairs have smended Companies (Aceounts) Rules. 2014-Rule 3 (Manner of Books of accounts to be kept in electronic made) on August 05, 2027, whereby the haoks of
aceount and other relevant books and papers maintained in electronic mode shall remain accessible in India at 2l times and the Company shall take back-up of books of account and other books and
papers of the company maintained in electronic mode. be kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

Currenily. the Company maintains its books of accounts on the cloud. which is managed by an external service provider. The service provider has confirmed that they ensure that a daily backup is
taken of such data as requived under Taw. which is stored on a separate server in the cloud localed outside of India. The Company s cureently in discussions with the service provider 1o store such
backup in a server in India and such activity is expected to be completed in the upcoming vear,

47 Previous Year Figures
Previous vear's figures have been regrouped - reclassified wherever necessary to conform 10 the current vear's ¢lassification,

As per our report ol even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants von Solutions & Logistics Private Limited
ICAT Firm Registration Number: [01039%W E300004

v
b nd &
per Aravind K FD R . L B Jayaram
Partner Managing Director Dirvecior
Membership No, 221268 DIN : 01019643 DIN (01602927

Place: Chennai
Date : June 21, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date ; June 21, 2023




